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STAFF REPORT  

TO : Allentown City Planning Commission  

FROM : Planning & Zoning Bureau 
  Jesus Sadiua, Senior Planner 

SUBJECT : RE-ZONING OF LANDS ON S. 6th ST. and W. CUMBERLAND ST. (Z Case #22-01)  

DATE : April 12, 2022 

Background 
 
1) The subject is a petition to change the zoning designation of six (6) parcels in the vicinity of South 

6th Street and West Cumberland Street in South Allentown, from Residential - Medium Density (RM) 
to Residential - Medium/High Density (RMH). The petition comes from Fitzpatrick Lentz & Bubba, 
P.C. – representing Yasin Khan Family Trust, equitable owner.  The proposed action is intended to 
make the lands suitable for multi-unit apartment buildings of the one- and two-bedroom types.  
 

2) Figure 1 is an aerial photo of the subject property’s vicinity showing the parcels owned by Petitioner 
(in blue outlines) and the existing zoning districts in the area.  It shows that the immediate area 

Fig-1. Aerial photo of the vicinity showing affected parcels (outlined in blue borders) and current zoning as color-coded. 
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hosts at least 5 zoning districts for residential (i.e., RM and RMH), commercial uses (i.e., B3 and 
I2), and parkland. 

 
3) Figure 2, in turn, shows the current land uses in that area.  

a) To the north and west of the re-zoning site are predominantly residential land uses.  
b) The northeast corner of the re-zoning site – at the corner of W. Cumberland and S. 5th – 

contains a retail shop and a storage space (the latter is currently vacant). 
c) The south border of the site abuts a cluster of industrial-type buildings currently used as 

storage for earthmoving equipment.  (FYI – this location used to host Valley Aluminum Prods.) 
d) To the east and south of the re-zoning site are the parklands of Trout Creek Parkway. 

 

 
4) The petition mentioned that most of the site acreage was originally zoned BLI when it hosted the 

former Montex Mills textile plant.  It is recalled that Montex burned down in 2005 and the site had 
stood vacant since.  In 2013, the affected parcels south of Cumberland Street and east of N. 6th 
Street were re-zoned to RM in preparation for residential development.  In fact, that 2013 re-zoning 
action also amended the Zoning Ordinance, creating the Pocket Neighborhood Development 
(§1315.02.02) to allow cottage-type housing. 

 

Clarification 
 

5) (Refer to Fig-1) – Although the project site consists of 15 parcels total, Parcels 1 to 9 are already 
properly zoned RMH and, therefore, will not need further action.  Parcels 10 to 15, which are 
currently zoned RM, are the subject of this request for re-zoning to RMH district. 

 
Findings /Comments  
 
6) In Allentown, RMH Districts were created to provide residential locations of “medium-high density 

with a mix of housing types, to protect such areas from incompatible uses, and to stabilize and 
preserve older neighborhoods.”  Such districts are usually found along the fringes of center city, 
and in other transition areas between residential districts and higher intensity land uses, like 

Fig-2. Aerial of the general vicinity showing affected parcels (outlined in blue borders) and adjacent land uses.  
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commercial or industrial zoning districts.  Indeed, if a re-zoning to RMH were granted it would 
accord the project site greater flexibility to accommodate slightly denser and somewhat intense 
land uses that are otherwise not allowed in RM Districts. 
 

7) When considering the merits of a proposed rezoning, Staff is guided by the following: 
a) The uses must be compatible (or consistent) with adjacent or emerging land uses. 
b) The uses must be supportive and consistent with the housing, economic development, 

employment objectives espoused by the current comprehensive plan.  
c) The uses must be accommodated by existing or potential infrastructure capacity. 
d) The uses must be in accordance with the environmental policies of the plan. 

 

8) Attachment 1 contains lists of uses permitted by-right and special exception in an RMH District.  

For a side-by-side comparison, the lists include similarly permitted uses in RM Districts.  Staff 

notes that the separation between RM and RMH in the hierarchy of zoning is just one level down 

the order.  As such, the uses allowed by-right in both districts are almost similar, varying only 

in intensity – yet the uses are still deemed compatible, even complementary in some cases. 
 

9) Attachment 2 is a comparison of the Area, Yard and Building Requirements in RM and RMH 

Districts (excerpt from Sec-1315 of the ZO).  Note the similarity in yard requirements, and height 

limits (Columns D, F, G and J) and slight differences in required measurements in lot area, 

building coverage and minimum size of dwelling units (Columns A, K and L). 
 

10) Allentown needs more housing regardless of tenancy, building-type or location. The ultimate 
intention to build residential units – like this petition -- is deemed supportive of Vision2030’s Housing 
element.  Likewise, the past comprehensive plan (2010) recognized this location as having 
underutilized residential and industrial lands with opportunities for growth and development – but 
that it is deemed challenged by narrow streets and soil contamination issues.   

 
11) Although Staff has not seen a conceptual plan for the envisioned residential development – but 

mindful of the narrow roadways in the area – we are aware that a high-density residential 
development on the site will affect future traffic flows in the vicinity. At this point, however, we 
reserve further comment on this until more definite, advanced development plans are received for 
review. 

 
12) Given the finding in Item 8, Staff does not object to the proposed re-zoning of Parcels 10 to 15 as 

labeled in Fig-1 from RM to RMH. 
 

Conclusion 

13) Staff recommends endorsement of the re-zoning as proposed as we look forward to receiving more 
development plans for this location. 

 

 

Action Taken by Allentown City Planning Commission (April 12, 2022) 

14)   Endorsed to City Council the rezoning of Parcels 10 to 14 from RM to RMH.  Parcel 15 remains RM. 
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